Date: 24 January 2008

TO: All Members of the Executive
FOR ATTENDANCE

TO: All Other Members of the Council
FOR INFORMATION

Dear Sir/Madam

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the EXECUTIVE to be held in the GUILDHALL,
ABINGDON on FRIDAY, 1ST FEBRUARY, 2008 at 2.30 pm.

Yours faithfully

Terry Stock
Chief Executive

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in the Code of Conduct adopted on 30
September 2007 and Standing Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial
Interests.

AGENDA

A large print version of this agenda is available. Any background papers
referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact Steve Culliford,
Democratic Services Officer on telephone number (01235) 540307; e-mail:
steve.culliford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

Please note that this meeting will be held in a wheelchair accessible venue. If you would like
to attend and have any special access requirements, please let the Democratic Officer know
beforehand and he will do his very best to meet your requirements.

Open to the Public including the Press

Map and Vision
(Page 10)

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council
Vision is attached.

Page 1




Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

STANDING ITEMS

1.

Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence.

Minutes

To adopt and sign as a correct record the public minutes of the meeting of the
Executive held on 7 December 2007, (previously circulated).

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect
of items on the agenda for this meeting.

Any Member with a personal interest or a personal and prejudicial interest in accordance
with the provisions of the Code of Conduct, in any matter to be considered at a meeting,
must declare the existence and nature of that interest as soon as the interest becomes
apparent in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

When a Member declares a personal and prejudicial interest he shall also state if he has a
dispensation from the Standards Committee entitling him/her to speak, or speak and vote
on the matter concerned.

Where any Member has declared a personal and prejudicial interest he shall withdraw
from the room while the matter is under consideration unless

(@) his/her disability to speak, or speak and vote on the matter has been removed by a
dispensation granted by the Standards Committee, or

(b) members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or
answer questions about the matter by statutory right or otherwise. If that is the
case, the Member can also attend the meeting for that purpose. However, the
Member must immediately leave the room once he/she has finished; or when the
meeting decides he/she has finished whichever is the earlier and in any event the
Member must leave the room for the duration of the debate on the item in which
he/she has a personal and prejudicial interest.

Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements

To receive notification of any matters which the Chair determines should be considered
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters
urgent, and to receive any announcements from the Chair.

Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32

Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made
or presented at the meeting.

Page 2



Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32

Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the
meeting.

(1) Question from Mr Les Clyne of Abingdon:

"Please could the following question be put on the 1st February 2008 Executive
Meeting Agenda for written reply by Mary de Vere, as Executive Member
responsible for housing, within 10 working days of the meeting.

1. The Executive Initial Draft budget for 2008/2009 has as one of its main
objectives affordable housing and states an aim to produce 400 units over 4
years (April 2008 - April 2012). The Vale Local Development Plan published in
2006, which is still in force, has an aim to permit and complete 2126 units of
housing between 1 April 2005 and 1 April 2011, of which around 2000 would fall
in the category where the Vale's target for affordable housing of 40% would
apply. Thus the Vale's overall target is to produce 40% of 2000, i.e. 800 units of
affordable housing, by April 2011. To date (January 2008) only 120 of the
800 have been permitted (e-mail correspondence and table from Jerry Patterson
to me dated 14th January 2008). Why is the Vale proposing to extend its
timescale by a year (to 2012 instead of 2011) and to cut its planned target
by around 50% from 800 to 400, has it informed central Government of
this massive change to its development plan, and has it been given approval for
this change?"

7. Referral under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules or the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Strategic Review Committee — 22 January 2008
The Executive’s Initial Budget Proposal 2008/09

The Strategic Review Committee, at its meeting on 22 January 2008, considered the
Executive’s Initial Budget Proposal 2008/09. The Committee (by 7 votes to nil, with 4
abstentions (the Conservative Members having abstained)) accepted that the totality of
the Executive’s thinking in the budget round was reasonable; the growth proposals
detailed in revised Appendix E were acceptable and understood; the Officer saving
proposals identified in the revised Appendix G were clear in terms of the implications
for services and outcomes; and that the risks of setting a Council Tax increase at
4.99% were understood.

However, the Conservative Group had concerns that the Medium Term Plan to
2011/12, as set out in the revised Budget Proposal, detailed further savings of
£135,000 from 2009/10 onwards but had not identified how these would be achieved
and whether there would be any impact on front line services.

Page 3



Executive

8.

Friday, 1st February, 2008

Referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Other Committees

Scrutiny Committee — 13 December 2007

(a)

Call In of Executive Decision — Transfer of Payroll Service

At the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee, held on 13 December 2007, the
decision taken by Councillor Jerry Patterson to transfer the Council’s payroll
service to South Oxfordshire District Council was called in for further scrutiny, as
it was felt that one of the six options identified for the future delivery of the
service (option 6) had not been explored sufficiently. At the meeting, the
Committee considered further information from the Council’'s Head of Human
Resources on option 6 and in the light of this the further information, had no
concerns regarding the decision taken by Councillor Patterson. However, in
reaching this decision the Scrutiny Committee resolved that the Executive be
advised that in future full information should be included in all Executive Member
decision notices.

Review the Activity of the Executive
Minute Ex.102 — Health and Safety Training

The Scrutiny Committee noted that the Executive, at its meeting on 7 December
2007, had recommended that the Council makes it a mandatory requirement for
all Members of the Executive and the Scrutiny Committee to be accredited to the
Institute of Occupational Safety and Health 'Safety for Senior Executives' training
standard and request the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer to arrange
evening training session options to which other Members of the Council are to
be invited also.

In considering this matter the Scrutiny Committee was opposed to making the
training mandatory for Members of the Scrutiny Committee and has
recommended Council accordingly.

Financial Monitoring

(Page 11)

Members are requested to consider any significant budget variances and any requests

for virement or permanent budget adjustment.

KEY DECISIONS

10.

Forward Plan

(Pages 12 - 14)

To receive the Forward Plan containing Executive decisions to be taken from February
to May 2008.

Recommendation

that the Forward Plan be received.

Page 4



Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

11.

Budget Proposals 2008/09

To receive and consider the Draft Budget Proposal for 2008/09 (stapled separately).

OTHER MATTERS

12.

13.

Treasury Management and Investment Strategy
(Pages 15 - 21)

To receive and consider report 137/07 of the Strategic Director and Chief Finance
Officer.

Introduction and Report Summary

The Treasury Management Policy, agreed by Council December 2001 requires the
approval of an annual Treasury Management Strategy for the next financial year. This
is in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has issued guidance
under Section 15 of the Local Government Act 2003 on Local Government cash
investments which requires approval of an Annual Investment Strategy. The guidance
acknowledges that it might be convenient to produce a single document that meets the
requirements of the CIPFA code and the Secretary of State’s guidance.

This report puts forward an Annual Strategy for this authority for 2008/09 which, as last
year, complies with the CIPFA code and the DCLG guidance. This is largely
unchanged from the existing strategy for 2007/08. This strategy restricts itself to non-
property investments. For property investment, Members should refer to the
Investment Policy last agreed by the Council on 24 March 2004

The Contact Officer for this report is Steve Lawrence, Principal Accountant (Technical),
telephone (01235 540321),
email: steve.lawrence@whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

Recommendation

Members are asked to approve the Annual Treasury Management & Investment
Strategy for 2008/09 (set out at Appendix A), and the limits and guidelines specified
therein.

Review of Sub-National Economic Development and Regeneration - Consultation
by ACTVaR
(Pages 22 - 26)

Attached is a copy of a letter from the Association of Councils in the Thames Valley
Region (ACTVaR) which seeks a view from this authority on the Review of Sub-
National Economic Development and Regeneration. ACTVaR's Steering Group is
meeting on 22 February 2008 to consider responses. ACTVaR's agenda item

Page 5



Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

14.

accompanies its letter attached on pages 22 - 26.

Recommendation

That the Executive determines its response to ACTVaR's consultation.

Review of National Non-Domestic Rates Discretionary Relief
(Pages 27 - 35)

To receive and consider report 138/07 of the Strategic Director and Chief Finance
Officer.

Introduction and Report Summary

The purpose of this report is to agree a new simplified process for awarding National
Non-Domestic Rate discretionary relief (business rates relief) that supports delivery of
the Council’'s Corporate Plan and Community Strategy. The report will aim to establish
a clear, transparent policy with an unambiguous link to the aims, objectives and
priorities of the Council.

This report is a review of the criteria for granting discretionary rate relief from rates on
any non-domestic property only and makes no proposals in relation to mandatory rate
relief as the Council has no discretion in such matters; where it acts as the agent of
central government.

The contact officer for this report is Paul Howden, Revenues & Benefits Client Manager
(Tel: 01235 540385; email paul.howden@southoxon.gov.uk).

Recommendations

Members are requested to approve:

2.1 The categories of organisation eligible for National Non-Domestic Rates
discretionary rate relief from 1 April 2008 as set out in Appendix A of the report.

2.2 The level of award to different types of organisation from 1 April 2008 as set out
in Appendix B of the this report, subject to any over-riding considerations that
mitigate against making an award to a particular organisation.

2.3 A cap of £8,000 on the amount of discretionary rate relief and £4,000 on the
amount of discretionary top-up rate relief that any organisation can receive in
respect of a particular premises in any one financial year, unless it is in the
financial interests of the Council to facilitate a larger amount being awarded. The
cap limits are to be reviewed each financial year and will rise in line with inflation
and the non-domestic rates multiplier.

2.4  The decision to award discretionary relief to be delegated to the Chief Finance
Officer based on the categories agreed by the Executive.

2.5 A review of the eligibility of the organisations that are currently being granted
rate relief.

Page 6



Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

15.

2.6  The criteria for discretionary relief will to be reviewed at least every three years
in line with the changing priorities of the Council commencing from year 2010 —
2011.

Tugwell Fields, Wantage
(Page 36)

(Wards Affected: Wantage Charlton)

A request has been received from Wantage Silver Band and Wantage Concords
Football Club for a agreement to build / conditional lease which, subject to funding,
would create a 99 year ground lease on an area of land measuring approximately half
an acre. This land is cross hatched black on the attached plan. Principal terms and
conditions for the lease have been provisionally agreed subject to appropriate
authorisation.

The position of both organisations as regards funding has not yet been determined.
Both organisations will require an agreement to build / conditional lease in order that
they may qualify for grant monies. The agreement to build /conditional lease is
therefore essentially required to lever in funding by external organisations.

The main heads of terms are as follows:

e A nominal rent.

e The land to be used solely for the construction and subsequent occupancy of a
community hall to be used primarily by the Wantage Silver Band in whose name
the lease will be granted. A portion of the hall will/may also be used for Wantage
Concords as changing rooms.

e That the premises can be used only for purposes compatible with community or
charity use.

e That a finite period of time be agreed with both organisations for the availability
of funding to be confirmed or otherwise. Failing the identification of adequate
funding the agreement would effectively fall away.

The land is held via a long lease from Oxfordshire County Council (the Superior
Landlord). In addition access to the site will need to be improved to facilitate the
construction of the hall.

The grant of a lease(s) will be conditional upon the following:

(i) Obtaining the consent of the Superior Landlord to the transaction.

(ii) Obtaining a satisfactory planning consent (insofar as necessary) for both the
Landlord's works (the construction of the access road and possibly ancillary
car parking), and the construction of the building. A planning permission was
granted on the 13™ December (Application No: WAN/20297).

(i)  Obtaining the necessary funding for the construction of the building and
approval of the funding institution to the transaction. Due to the nature of the
various grant funding regimes a commitment to lease is required to qualify for
such funding.

(iv)  Completion or an undertaking to complete the Landlord's works which will
include the creation of pedestrian and vehicular access way to the property,

Page 7



Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

16.

and the construction of service conduits to the property insofar as they are
not already available.

Agreement as to the precise nature of the landlords works together with the form and
extent of the building have yet to be finalised. Landlord works will be funded via Section
106 monies. The Vale’s reasonable valuation and legal costs together with other fees
and disbursements will be borne by the Wantage Silver Band.

Recommendations

(a)  An agreement to build / conditional lease is granted to Wantage Silver Band and
Wantage Concords upon the above terms and conditions. The agreement to
build / lease to be granted conditional upon sufficient funding being raised to
complete the development;

(b) That delegated authority be given to the Chief Executive to vary and or amend
the stated terms and conditions as occasion demands;

(c) That no financial burden fall to this Council in facilitating the scheme; and

(d) That the precise extent of the land to be leased particularly in relation to the
provision of car parking be determined once the financial position of the
respective organisations becomes clearer, together with such reserved rights as
the Council may require.

Climate Change Project Board

The Council’s first Climate Change Strategy was approved by the Executive at its meeting
on 7 December 2007. The Executive requested that a further report be bought to its
February meeting detailing the content and role of the proposed Climate Change Project
Board. It is proposed that a project board be established in accordance with the
guidelines already established by the Organisational Development and Support Service.
The Climate Change Project Board will challenge and scrutinise the work of the Climate
Change Project Team, and monitor the implementation of the Climate Change Strategy.
The project team will be composed of 6 to 8 officers, all of whom have a key role in
delivering same aspect of the Council’s Climate Action Plan as detailed in the Strategy.

The proposed composition of the Project Board is:
e The Executive Portfolio Holder for Housing and Community Safety
e The Deputy Director (Housing and Community Safety) — Service provider with
responsibility to deliver the strategy
e Another Deputy Director of the Chief Executive's choice

Recommendation

That the Climate Change Project Board is established to challenge and scrutinise the
work of the Climate Change Project Team, and monitor the implementation of the Climate
Change Strategy and that the Project Board consists of:
e The Executive Portfolio Holder for Housing and Community Safety
e The Deputy Director (Housing and Community Safety) — Service provider with
responsibility to deliver the strategy

Page 8



Executive Friday, 1st February, 2008

17.

18.

e Another Deputy Director of the Chief Executive's choice

Setting up a Joint Waste Procurement Project Board

The Council is currently seeking to enter into partnership with South Oxfordshire District
Council (SODC), in order to create a joint waste collection contract. Following the
experience gained from setting up the Ridgeway Shared Services Organisation it is
proposed that a joint project board is established for waste collection. Under the Vale's
Constitution it is not possible to form a Joint Committee that has Executive powers and
allow Members other than those on the Executive to sit on this. On the basis that this is
the single largest contract that the Councils will enter into, it is recommended that wider
input from Council Members is required from the outset, involving an Executive
Member, Liberal Democrat backbencher and Opposition Member (conditional upon
SODC agreeing a similar 3-Member appointment).

Recommendation

That the Joint Waste Procurement Project Board includes:
e the Executive Member with responsibility for the new Waste contract
e a non-Executive Member from the Liberal Democrat Group and
e a Member from the Conservative Group

Exclusion of the Public, including the Press

The Chair to move that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public, including the press, be excluded from the remainder of the
meeting to prevent the disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in Section
100(l) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A, as amended, to the Act when the following item is
considered:

ltem 19  Minutes
(Category 1 - Information relating to any individual.)
(Category 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any
individual.)
(Category 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information.)

EXEMPT INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 100A(4) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT

1972

19.

Minutes

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Exempt minutes of the meeting of the
Executive held on 7 December 2007, (previously circulated).

Page 9



1USWIUOIIAUS [BINJBU pUE }|INg N0 aA0dwl pue 100101

aleA 8yl
uiyim sjdoad Jo spesu ayl 01 aAisuodsal pue 1UBIDILS ‘BAI108))a
ale yoym saoiales olgnd Auenb ybBiy 1ioddns pue apinold

Agenda Annex

|eizualod iny a8y}l asijes.
01 39BA 8yl ulyum sienpiaipul pue sdnoib pabBejueapesip djeH

8[BA 3U1 1ISIA 1O Ul YJOM ‘Ui 8Al OYM
Jle sujsuaq yotym Awouods ajqeurelsns pue Buolsis e abeinosug

S1UapISal B_A
Buowe sy1) jo Anjenb ay1 saoidwi pue Ajunwwod Jsjes e aiealn

SBAH} INO 1091J8 YDIYM SUOISIOap a8yl
0} 81NQ{IU0D pue AlUNWWOD JNo Ul Led 8)el ued sucAlons jey)
0s Jamod JO UOIIN|CASP pUB ‘UOIIR}NSUOD ‘UOIIBULIOJUI 0] $$830E
ybnoiylr 1uswonjoaul ofgnd pue Aoeroowsap |eoo| uayibusng

101 SWIE [IoUN0) 19111SI(] 8SI0H B1IYAA 1O 9JBA SU|

Allunwwoo sjeuoissedwiod
pue uado “uie) e pienBajes pue pjing o} SI UOISIA INQ

SIV ANV NOISIA HNO

3asAOH PYM JO
IV R

dojs sng=Sg  A3IN

1eeus X0
ey

3%

Z10v8
UOJLJOOM

T T
sapw g

uoptms
ol

piojbutiiep
oL

1s153ydI0Qq
oL

apejysa
o1

(8 unr)
orw oy

LOCATION MAP -

3s.40H a3Yym jo
OIVN



Agenda ltem 9

0Z.09 feyoL
000'8E GedAjejolL
000 ¥ adhj |ejoL
0£0°2 cadA] jej0)
- ZodhL |ejoL
069°€l | adA jejo1
fsewwng
0Z.'09 SjusWallA 8o
jels Aouabe Jano9 0) }sod i . uirupyY yesH uiRuUpY ylesH
N A b JUBOBA WOl 1a6png Atejes juadsun aaop %C'L 069'8 jeluswuoAug bd3a 00tk [eJuSWINONIAUT a3 Look 8002/10/20
$80Uady|/eseyoINd alemyos aBuByD
A A G o} Juswdinbs jo aseyoind 10j 186pnq J0|%8"9 00081 uonesuebio LLHO Zisy abueyd uoneswebio  LLHO 000V 8002/10/£0
i9jsuel; - ainjipuadxa Jo uoniuyap pasoiduwy T
julod 0d $921AI9 LIV
N A € $901A19G (B0 Ul JEYS Aouabe Janod 01 3150d|%9°9 ovL'9 wiod Ieg LPNO 00t} INes LO9NO L00L 1002/Z1/Le
12207 uopbuigy e150d 9jei0diod
JUBOBA WOl 186pnq Asejes juadsun saAop
L 000‘S abusu) LLHO €00y abueys uonesiuebio LEHD 6144 JRUVATATI A
A A aoueuBjuieW JuBWAINDS 0} S8DIAIRS B S99, i 6 uonesiuebio T
pue juawdinbe Jo aseyaind oy 186png jo| ° . abueyp
S JojsUES] - BInpUSdXa 4O UOKILIYAP PaAOITLL] 000°0C uonesiuebIo LLHO £00r aBueys uonesiuebio LIHO 000Y LO0Z/2VILL
Buiseyoind Juaidye 8IoLw 10} Mojje 0} 451 U104 SBOIAD 201
N A € uopbuigy 0} 82O easv uopbulied wol|%8 L2 068 Jiod SSABS LPND LOEY/000Y wo LZND LOEY/000 | L00Z/Ci/El
12207 uopbuigy eaJy uopbuieq
sjabpnq Alsuonels pue Juswdinba anop
suofoes uswpe ajeiodion oIS
N A 4 pue ofesowa( Jo uoneweblewe Bumolio)| %2 000°Z sabieyd pue 1297 1004 21504 Qm 10d100) LOND 1001 £00z/eLicl
1sod ulwpy sabieys pueq Joy 16png uiney
{eaoiddy 10108410
9ANJaXy Aindagpuoioang abejueaied 3[e10l awieN 8po) apo) wiol4
saJlinbay Aq pasuoyiny adA) UOSESY JUSWABNA JUBWBIIA anuag 1se) QU8 180D | 01 JUN0DDY | Swep aJjuen 1807 | enuanison | unosoy a1eqg ‘'ON

000°0L3 4900 G
SEOJE 90IAJSS SSOIY ¢

£6JE S01AISS B JO SBIUSD }S00 AU} UIYIM €
sBuipest) 9A30algNSs SSOIOE ING 844USY 150D B UIYIM 2
2JJU80 }SO0 B UiUlIM 9AND3IGNS B UIYIA |

adA} o) Aoy

8002 Asenuep g Je peAIadds SJUBWBHA

8AIJNo2axXT 10} B}ON

Page 11



Agenda Item 10

80/10/01 - 90-Cl l 8002 AVIN L€ - 8002 AYVNYE3d | ueld pilemiod DQHMA

siofedoiey
Mn'Aob°dss Ae ssauisng
MabpuDsqooel Weljim pue sspiwwo) 60/8002
Jlew-3  GG0¥S GEZLO MaINDY SIEYN 8002 slesodolid
"OUON ‘91 sqooe Wellip oi1bsjelig JINsuo) ap Auo| Jojpunod | 800z Avenigad | go4 | ©AlInNDexg SOA 196png
S AOB Opas]

oyalyM@doysiq aAs)s epusbe

ZEE0YS (S£210) 18l SAIIN0SXT

18921y LG Uoioas Alens
196png pue Joyaliqg o1bsiens slapjoy 196pnq SJopI|oH uo sieadde 2002 Bunoyuopy
£0/9002 ‘doysig ®A®)S | Yim uoneynNsuo) Oljojlod 8AlINo8X3 W) sIyl | ged | aAnoex3 ON [eloueul

ue|d piemio

pasnh poylaw uo paysijqnd Jayew S uoiIs|oap
sjuawnosoq 19210 19BU0DH uofjejjnsuon S99}INSuUo0) jsayy 9jeq uoisigsaqg Koy uoisi|oaqg

Page 12

‘uoIsioap ay} jo aep ay; Buipaosaud Aep Bupiom sy} uo wdg
AQ mojoq UMOUS JODILO JOBIUOD JUBAD|DL SU) O} 9peW aq }Sn suonejuasalday -uaye} sI uoisioap B aloyaq sensst BuImo|jo) au} Jo Aue UO apewl aq ued suonejuasaldoy

‘aouaime] ejebuy pue UojJsuUyor gog ‘AqeuueH Auusr ‘(|aiied pJeyory ‘a1ap ap Auo] ‘aiap ap Aepy
SI0[10UNOY :SIaquIB|N Pa}oa|e Buimo||0) 8y} pue ‘Uosianed ALS[ JOJ|IDUNOY ‘IDUNOY 8U) 0 JopeaT auy sesdwod siy] ‘9AN%axg ay) AQ uaye) ag O} SI UOISIOap 8y} 8JsUyp

"IoUNoY JBYJOUR JO S3Ipoq Jayjo ypm sjuswabuelie juiof ybnouy) Jo ‘8ajliluLLos Baly Ue ‘|Iouno) 8y} JO JeoiyQ UB ‘BA)NIaxg 8y} JO Jaquuayy [BNPIAIPUl UB ‘9AIIN0SX]
9} JO 93ILIWIOD B ‘DjoymM B SB 9ANOSXT 9} AQ USME) 8q UBD SUOISIOBP 9AIINDSXT "S8JIAISS JO Sepuabe alow Jo om) uo joedul ue Jo ‘psjosye Buidg Ajunwiuwiod

8y} jo uoiodoid ybiy e ‘sbuiaes jueaiiubis Bupew o ainypuadxa juedyiubis Bulunoul 1IDUNOYD 8Y) Ul JNSal 0} Ajdi] SI UoIUmM SAIINDSXT 8y} JO UOISIDap B S| UoIsioaq
Koy v -Ajyuows abueys oy 109algns ‘ueld Buljjos e s1}] "8A0QE UMOYS pollad YIUOLW-INoj 8y} JBAO Uaye) ag 0} A|8y1| suoisioa A3y JO 8|nNpayos e 1no S)as ue|d pJemiod sty

8002 AV L€ - 8002 AYVNYETS L WO¥4 NIXMVL 38 OL SNOISIOIA A3X FAILNDIXT ONINIVLNOD
NV1d 4dVMAI O

TIONNOD 12181810 3SHUOH 31IHM 40 J1VA




80/L0/0L - L0:4 L 2 800Z AVW LE - 800Z AHVNHET | UBld PJemiod OAHMA
a)sep
WNACDOpasioys 10} @3ILIWIo)
M@ ASYoeW [oe (oIl JuswWaINo0.d
Jlew-3  Lee0vs GECL0 sjlouno) Jauped Aqeuuey 800¢ ior
"OUON ‘1oL Aexoel |eeydi JBYJ0 }INsuo) Auuap Jojounod | 800z Aeniga4 | go4 | aAlNoax3 ON e dn Busg
[]8gle%e)
0] sebueyo
Aoljod Aue 1oy JETENY|
SUOI}EPUSLILLIOD3 Aeuonalosiq
NN"A0CDOpas ayew sojey
JOU3)IUMDIUSIIBM'AQO] | 0} 9AlINDaX3 uay) =YY ansawoq
few-3  G69.¥S GECLO 19P|OH OljofIod ap Auo] pue jja1re4 800¢ -UON jeuoiieN
"OUON ‘|81 uailepp Ago] | @AINOaXJ }NSuU0D pJeyory sioj|iouno) /00Z AInr | ge4 | aApnoax] ON JO M3INDY
Juswiaalojug
SNACBDpas Bupjied p
I0U3IUMD pooy 196p0l asljeullwoag
lew-3  0¥eovS GECLO silaquisiy lI8lled 800¢ 0}
"OUON ‘o1 POOH Jabpoy | 8Apnoax3 }nsuod pJeyory JojjIouno) | 800z Alenugad | ga4 | aAnoax3 ON | swiwwo)
aweyos
wswdopaaa
ssaooud [e207 8y}
MN"ACBopas ylomauiel dnoig JO UoISInSY
awayog | IOUSNIUM@POOY 18bpol wswdojaaaqg Alosiapy Buluueld Hiomawel
Juswdolaraq | Jlew-3 0vE0YS GEZL0 | 18907 8y} ybnodyy [e007 pue oibejeng 800¢ JuswdojareQg
[e007] ‘|21 pooH Jobpoy uone}Nsuo) | ssesyNsuo) Auoniels | 800z Aensga4 | a4 | eAnNoaxy ON [=elog]
ABajess
Sn"A0b dsS Ae JUSWIISBAU|
Mabpu@sqooel welfjim pue
lew-3  GSH0PS GECLO SIEAN 8002 juswabeuepy
"SUON ‘oL sqooer wel|lIp a|jgeoidde JoN ap Auo] Jojounod | 800z Aienige4 | ga4 | 8AlINoax3 ON Ainseal|
pasn poyjaw paysiiqnd 13)qew Zuoisioap
sjuawnosoQg joeuo0n Koy

uone}INsuon

s99}|Nsuon

1511 93eQ

uoisioag

uoisioaqg

Page 13



80/L0/0) - 20:L 4 o 8002 AVIA LE - 800Z AVNYE3S | UBld P1emiod DAHMA
NNAOB D
pasSIOUaNUMPD)JBLIE} |jIiq SOOUBIUBAUOD
Jrew-3  9ge0rs SJapJoH uojsuyor 800¢ dlland
"OUON GEZL0 ‘181 Jeued |i1g 1ebpng }nsuo) gog Jojjiouno) | 900z Alenuqay | 1dy p aAnnoaxg ON 10 M3BINSY
‘Hodal uodal Aousby
Buiwooyuol JUSWIUOIIAUY
s Aouaby Jo uoneaygnd
MN"AGB 0P JUSWIUOIIAUT uoslaned Buimoyjoy
asIloysiyM@Igpes win | ey jo uonedygnd Ao JojjIounoD - 1002
Hodal Jlew-3  09€0¥S Buimol|oy dnoio AInr ajeA ay)
s,Aouaby GEZLO ‘|21 o1auaQg uayeuapun AOSIAPY JuBID 8002 ui Buipooi4
JUSWIUOIIAUT o16ajeng ‘Is|pes wil 9Q 0} MaInSY A1BA008Y pOO|4 | 2002 1990100 | Jdy  9A)Noax] SOA 10 M3y
Buiodal
uondaoxa
1o} wes |
NN"ACDOp uswabeuepy
9SIOUSlIYMDIS|pES Wi} lousg
Jlew-3  09€0vS Aq palepisuod
GEZL0 191 Joyaug ejep Bunojuow wea| 8002 9OUBUIBA0D)
"QUON o1bajeng ‘Jo|pes wil Jo uone|on | juswabeuey Jolusg 800z udy | 1dy { oAnNO9Xg ON ajesodio)
_pasn poyjaw paysiqnd Ja)ew ¢ UoISI29p
sjusawnl0Qg joBIUOY X )Y]

uone}nsuo’n

$99)jNsuon

}say ajeQ

uoisioag

uoisioaqg

Page 14



Agenda ltem 12

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL Report No. 137/07

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

3.0

4.0

4.1

Wards Affected - ALL

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE
TO THE EXECUTIVE
1 FEBRUARY 2008

Treasury Management and Investment Strategy for 2008/09

Introduction and Report Summary

The Treasury Management Policy, agreed by Council December 2001 requires the
approval of an annual Treasury Management Strategy for the next financial year. This
is in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has issued guidance
under Section 15 of the Local Government Act 2003 on Local Government cash
investments which requires approval of an Annual Investment Strategy. The guidance
acknowledges that it might be convenient to produce a single document that meets the
requirements of the CIPFA code and the Secretary of State’s guidance.

This report puts forward an Annual Strategy for this authority for 2008/09 which, as
last year, complies with the CIPFA code and the DCLG guidance. This is largely
unchanged from the existing strategy for 2007/08. This strategy restricts itself to non-
property investments. For property investment, Members should refer to the
Investment Policy last agreed by the Council on 24 March 2004

The Contact Officer for this report is Steve Lawrence, Principal Accountant
(Technical), telephone (01235 540321), email steve.lawrence@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Recommendations

Members are asked to approve the Annual Treasury Management & Investment
Strategy for 2008/09 (set out at Appendix A), and the limits and guidelines specified
therein.

Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies

This report supports the Council’s vision, strands A and B. It complies with the
Council’s strategies for sound financial management and it complies with the Treasury
Management Policy, approved by Council on 19 December 2001, and follows the
procedure recommended in the revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of
Practice, January 2002.

Local Government Investments

Local Authorities’ powers and practices for investing their surplus funds are contained
in Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003. The act allows the Secretary of State to
issue guidance on investments and to specify other guidance which should be
followed. Guidance was issued in March 2004 and specified that regard should also
be had to the Treasury Management Code of Practice and The Prudential Code for

Sfl/D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\2008020 ﬁMStrategy;ng‘tO.doc
age



4.2

4.3

4.4

5.0

5.1

5.2

Capital Finance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA).

The general objective remains that local authorities should prudently invest surplus
funds held. Priority should be given to security and liquidity but it is reasonable to
seek the highest return consistent with those aims. The guidance specifically
discourages the use of speculative investments such as equities. Borrowing to invest
remains unlawful.

Somewhat confusingly the guidance introduces the concept of “specified” and “non-
specified” cash investments. Specified investments are those offering high security,
high liquidity and low risk. They should be in sterling and with a maturity of no more
than 1 year. Investments made with the UK Government or a local authority are
automatically included as are bodies with “a high credit rating”, the definition of which
is left to the authority. Non-specified investments are those that don’t meet this
description. The aim seems to be not to discourage authorities from using non-
specified investments but to ensure that proper procedures are in place to assess any
greater risk. These categories are considered separately in sections 4 and 5 of the
Strategy.

The guidance also applies to investments made through external fund managers.

Treasury Management and Investment Strategy

The Treasury Management Policy requires an annual Treasury Management &
Investment Strategy Statement. This sets borrowing limits, investment objectives,
approved organisations for investment, guidelines and performance criteria for the in-
house operation. Since there has been no significant change in the Council’s
circumstances or the investment market the Strategy Statement for 2007/08 agreed in
March 2007 is still suitable and has just been updated where necessary. Any
additions are indicated. The proposed Strategy Statement for 2008/09 is set out at
Appendix A.

Prudential indicators relating to capital expenditure, required by the Capital Finance
Regulations issued under the 2003 Act, will be reported to the Council meeting on 27
February 2008 as part of the budget setting report..

STEVE LAWRENCE
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT (TECHNICAL)

WILLIAM JACOBS
HEAD OF FINANCE

Background Papers:

Treasury Management in the Public Services — Code of Practice and Cross-sectoral
Guidance notes. Published by CIPFA Jan 2002.

Guidance on Local Government Investments ODPM 12 March 2004

D:\moderngov\Data\A gendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\20080201 TM Strategyreport0.doc

24 January 2008 Pag e 1 6



1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

APPENDIX A

TREASURY MANGEMENT & INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2008-09

Investment Objectives

The main objectives to be followed in 2008/09 are:

e to invest in instruments conducive to achieving optimum returns whilst ensuring the
security of the principal invested.

e to ensure a balanced portfolio in terms of period and maturity date with specific
regard to major cash inflows and outflows (e.g. precept payments and grant
receipts);

e to have regard to protecting the Council’s position against fluctuations in interest
rates and enabling it to plan properly for future financial commitments;

e to maintain sufficient liquidity to allow for cash-flow variations arising from income
receipts and expenditure commitments, and to take advantage of interest rate
movements when favourable;

e to keep investment management expenses to a minimum whilst ensuring that the
overall return to the Council is maximised.

Investment of the Council’'s funds will be in accordance with the Treasury
Management Policy. The overriding factor will be the security of the principal invested.
Investment returns are associated with risk and, therefore, the margin of interest
attainable will generally be lower the more secure the investment.

Liquidity of Investments

This refers to how easily the investment can be converted into cash. In normal
circumstances higher returns are achievable from investments with lower liquidity.
The use of longer term instruments (greater than 1 year to maturity) will fall in the non-
specified investment category. It is proposed that these will only be used for the
Council’s core funds and a maximum investment period of three years is proposed
because this is consistent with the capital planning framework and forecasting interest
rate movements beyond 18 months is difficult. The actual limits are included under
non-specified investments below.

Approved Organisations for Investment

When assessing an organisation for investment purposes the Council will use Butlers
creditworthiness advice for applying credit rating criteria. Butlers is a division of ICAP
Securities plc and is the Council’s appointed investment advisor. The Council
receives updates from Butlers of changes to credit ratings as they occur. These
updates will be incorporated into the Council’s counterparty list on the same day. The
criteria will be applied as follows:

Banks the Council will use all banks with the following international credit ratings
from Fitch (or equivalent from Moody or Standard & Poor):
Short Term: F1 Long Term: A—
Individual rating: C Support rating: 3

Sfl/D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\2008020 ﬁMStrategyTp?'IO.doc
age



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

APPENDIX A

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries: The Council will use these where the parent
bank meets the rating requirement as above.

Building Societies the Council will use building societies which have ratings as for
banks above. In addition, it will use unrated Societies with assets
in excess of £500 million. (This makes up the top 30).

Money Market Funds Funds that have an AAA rating. (This is statutory
requirement.)

UK Government: Including gilts (to be used by the external fund manager) and the
Debt Management Office (responsible for lending to local
authorities).

Supranational Bonds: The Council’s external fund manager is allowed to invest in
these instruments through their mandate.

Other Local Authorities

Specified Investments

These are sterling investments of not more than one-year maturity in a body with a
high credit rating and not defined as capital expenditure (making an investment in a
company.) This would include investments with The UK Government, a Money Market
fund which is rated AAA by Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, a local authority or
an institution with a short term credit rating of either F1 (Fitch), P-1 (Moody’s) or A-1
(Standard & Poor’s).

Non-Specified Investments

These are any other type of permitted investment (i.e. not defined as specified above).
This would include any sterling investments (there is no wish to invest in other
currencies) with:

Gilt edged securities (over one year). These are used by the Council’s Fund Manager.
The mandate allows maximum duration of any investment to be 15 years but the
average of all investments should not exceed 5 years.

Supranational bonds (over one year) (these are basically gilts but issued by foreign
governments) with a AAA rating.

An institution with a long term credit rating of AA- (Fitch and Standard & Poor’s) or Aa3
(Moody’s) for deposits with a maturity between 1 and 3 years.

Non-rated Building Societies with assets in excess of £1 billion (the top 21) limited to
no longer than 9 months,

Non-rated Building Societies with assets in excess of £500 million (the next 9) limited
to no longer than 6 months,

Unrated subsidiaries of an institution which meets the credit rating criteria outlined
above limited to 6 months.

D:\moderngov\Data\A gendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\20080201 TM Strategyreport0.doc

24 January 2008 Pag e 1 8



5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

APPENDIX A
[This paragraph ADDED for 2008-09]
Upper limit for total funds held in specified investments at any time - £20 million
Upper limit for total funds held in unspecified investments at any time - £20 million

Limits with any institution

A balanced portfolio should be maintained to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to
allow for cash flow variations, and to protect the Council against fluctuations in interest
rates. The following limits will be applied:

Fitch Moody’s |Standard & Money Time
Poor’s Limit Limit
Upper Limit Category Fil+/AA- | P-1/Aa3 |A-1+/AA-| £5m | 3years
Lower Limit Category F1/A- P-1/A3 | A-1/A- £5m 1 year
Building Society Limits 1 Assets in excess of £1bn £3'm 9 months
Building Society Limits 2 Assets in excess of £500m £3m 6 months
Unrated Subsidiaries - - - £3m 6 months
Other Institution Limits - - - £5m various

The Other Institution Limit will be for other local authorities, the DMADF (Debt
Management Account Deposit Facility — lending to the Government), Money Market
Funds and Gilt and Supranational investments. These are all considered high quality
names — although not always rated — and therefore will have the same limit as the
Upper Category.

In exceptional circumstances short term variations to these limits will be allowed,
subject to the written authority of the Strategic Director.

Interest rate exposure - borrowing

The Council is required to determine the following limits for the next three financial
years. The Prudential Code for Capital Finance stipulates that these are set at the
same time as the Prudential Indicators for Capital Finance are considered. Those
indicators are included in the Executive Budget Proposal in Appendix A(i) of that report
(yellow pages) to be considered at the Council meeting on 27 February 2008. There
is no intention to borrow except temporarily to cover cash shortages, which would be
at fixed rates for very short periods.

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

Operational boundary for external debt £2 million £2 million £2 million
Authorised limit for external debt £5 million £5 million £5 million
limit for amounts at variable interest . . .

nil nil nil
rates
limit for debt maturity greater than 1 . . .

nil nil nil
year

D:\moderngov\Data\A gendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\20080201 TM Strategyreport0.doc
24 January 2008

Page 19



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.0

10.1

APPENDIX A
[This paragraph ADDED for 2008-09]
Interest rate exposure - lending

The strategy allows investment with Money Market Funds. Currently one such fund is
used for daily surpluses since it has instant access and a good rate of interest. The
interest rate is revised every week to reflect the actual content of the whole fund so
technically if we had money invested for more than a week it is at a variable interest
rate. The guidelines say that there should be a limit on total lending. The guidelines
also say there should be limits placed on investments with maturities beyond one year
(this relates to fixed interest and period investments and includes sums held by the
Council’'s Fund Manger.

upper lower

Limit on investments at variable interest rates £5 million nil

It is more sensible to show maturity limits as percentages of total investments.

upper lower
Limit on investment, final maturity up to 1 year 100% 50%
Limit on investment, final maturity 1 year to 2 yrs 30% nil
Limit on investment, final maturity 2 yrs to 3 yrs 20% nil

Guidelines for In-house Investment

The brokers listed below are currently authorised to arrange the Council’s cash
investments:

Prebon Marshall Yamane (UK) Ltd

Tradition UK Limited

Intercapital Europe (lcap) (a division of ICAP Securities plc.)

New brokers can only be used after written consent from the Strategic Director & Chief
Finance Officer.

Investments may only be made with Local Authorities and other organisations as
authorised by the Bank of England under the Banking Act 1987, subject to fulfilling the
criteria above and up to the limits above.

Authorised officers in the Finance Service Area have responsibility for the daily
management of cash and the authority to agree investments for a period of up to three
months within policy guidelines (the actual transaction must be authorised by one of
the three bank signatories as with any payment).

Money invested for a period exceeding three months requires the prior written
authorisation of the Principal Accountant (Technical).

A weekly report is produced to provide the Strategic Director & Chief Finance Officer
with details of all investment activities.

Performance Measures

The Executive will receive regular reports on Treasury Management activities as
detailed in the Treasury Management Policy.

D:\moderngov\Data\A gendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\20080201 TM Strategyreport0.doc

24 January 2008 P ag e 2 0



APPENDIX A
10.2 The following key performance measures are recommended:

in-house investment rates achieved compared to the LIBID 7 day rate;
adherence to investment policy and strategy;

full investment of daily balances;

maintenance of a balanced portfolio;

weekly reports produced (in-house) or monthly (externally managed funds).

February 2008

D:\moderngov\Data\A gendaltemDocs\8\6\3\A100008368\20080201 TM Strategyreport0.doc

24 January 2008 Pag e 2 1



L . Agendg ltem 13.
— %Y f?@F Association of Councils of the Thaimes aITIey Region

AcTY

Council Offices Queen Victoria Road High Wycombe Bucks HP11 1BB
d R Tel: 01494 421508 DX: 4411 High Wycombe - 1 Fax: 01494 421109

Email: bdeller@wycombe.gov.uk Website: www.actvar.gov.uk

Our Ref: BD/MJM

14 December 2007

Mr T Stock

Vale of White Horse District Council
The Abbey House

Abingdon

0X14 3JE

THIS LETTER IS A HARD COPY OF AN E-MAIL
WHICH YOU WERE SENT LAST WEEK.

Dear ’I:_/,)

The attached agenda item on the Sub National Review was considered by the
ACTVaR meeting on 7 December 2007. Members resolved that a Special Meeting of
ACTVaR should be held in February 2008 (now confirmed for the morning of 22
February 2008 at South Oxfordshire District Council) to consider this matter but that |
should immediately write to all ACTVaR Chief Executives as well as the Chief
Executive of Milton Keynes Council enclosing the agenda report and inviting each
council to consider their response to the Sub National Review including the
suggestions raised in this report. The intention is that comments from each ACTVaR
Council should be received by the end of January 2008 after which a meeting of the
ACTVaR Steering Group will be held to consider these responses and prepare for
the Special Meeting on 22 February 2008.

| would be most grateful if your Council could consider this report alongside your
other discussions on the Sub National Review and let me have your Council's view
on these and any other proposals no later than 28 January 2008. Please contact me
if you require clarification on any of the points in this letter or the enclosed report.

ACTVaR would like to extend an invitation to all Council Leaders to attend this
Special Meeting as well as the usual ACTVaR Representatives. | would be grateful if
you could bring the contents of this letter to the attention of your Leader and
nominated ACTVaR representatives.

Yours sincerely

4,

Barry Deller
ACTVaR Director

Promoting the voice of local authorities in Berkshire, Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire

ACTVaR DRgg@q’_PrQ Deller



Agenda Item 7

REVIEW OF SUB-NATIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT &
REGENERATION (SNR)

This meeting of ACTVaR has the opportunity to comment on the implications
of the publication in July 2007 of the Review of Sub-National Economic
Development and Regeneration (SNR). The ACTVaR Steering Group
considered this matter at its meeting on 7 November 2007 prior to the plenary
meeting of the Regional Assembly at Winchester on 14 November 2007.

The main elements of the SNR, in summary are:-

There will be a single integrated regional strategy (IRS), which will provide
the strategic regional framework, combining what is currently covered by
the regional economic, spatial and housing strategies. The RDA will
become the single regional agency with executive responsibility for
producing this strategy, working closely with local government and other
partners. The strategy will need to be agreed with local government in the
region.

* New scrutiny arrangements for RDAs will be put in place, relying on local
government in the region.

 The new RDAs’ role will be more strategic, with increased delegation of
economic development delivery to local authorities.

Regional assemblies in their current form will not continue beyond 2010.

Regional Ministers were appointed as part of the ‘Governance of Britain’
announcement; Parliamentary regional select committees are proposed.

The Government is expected to publish consultation papers in December
2007 on implementing the SNR including the IRS and new economic
development powers for local authorities. Government has indicated that it is
for regions to respond to the SNR but that certain parameters are fixed:

- there will be a single regional strategy to be drawn up by the RDA working
closely with local authorities and other stakeholders

- Regional Assemblies will cease to exist in their current form and function
- the current boundaries of the SE region are immutable

- local authorities will need to organise themselves to respond to the new
economic development duty and impact of the SNR. :

For ACTVaR the SNR will have significant implications from the end of
2008/09 as new organisational arrangements start to come into place to

1of4

Page 23



implement the SNR from 2010. Regional consultation events will be held
during 2008 and the Regional Assembly plenary meeting in March 2008 will
be considering potential options for the way forward including how local
government wishes to work together under the post-2010 arrangements.
Party groups will be considering these matters in January 2008 so there is a
relatively short period for ACTVaR and its Member authorities to suggest
options that might be considered during 2008 for the implementation of SNR
in the South East Region.

ACTVaR Party Groups are invited to consider these matters and to contribute
their thinking on possible options to the December meeting of ACTVaR.
Thereafter it will probably be appropriate to convene a special meeting of the
ACTVaR Steering Group in the New Year to review the contributions received
on 7 December 2007 and to consider the Government consultation
document(s) expected to be published before Christmas. The Steering Group
could determine if there is a single option to be promoted by ACTVaR in the
forthcoming debate or whether a range of options should be advanced for
wider discussion across the region.

The ACTVaR Steering Group has discussed the SNR and the report
considered by the Assembly’s Executive Committee and the following points
were agreed:

1. that the case for great urgency has not been proven;

2. that sub-regional working has demonstrated great value and a sub-
regional local government organisation must be retained;

3. that the model of a Leaders’ Senate is not convincing; and

4. that cross-boundary working is vitally important for our sub-region and
often extends across county boundaries; the county unit is by no
means the only unit for cross-boundary working.

ACTVaR is invited to consider these principles and to affirm support for these
points. In considering a new model(s) for regional governance in the South
East this meeting of ACTVaR might like to debate the following propositions
which if supported/amended can form the basis for ACTVaR inputting
option(s) to the consultation process early in 2008.

Key Principles for Discussion

ACTVaR is an established sub-regional local government organisation
working within a regional context. Our experience over 10 years in the
Thames Valley demonstrate that there are many issues that are best
managed at a sub-regional level where common factors are at play. At the
heart of the SNR is the wish of Government to support sub-regions to promote
economic growth. Government now recognises sub-regions as the most
appropriate units for managing a range of issues including economic
development and transport. In the light of our experience in the Thames
Valley and the Government's new emphasis on sub-regions it is most
appropriate that ACTVaR should be proposing a model of regional
governance that is based on sub-regional building blocks but working within a

2 of 4

Page 24



regional framework. The following thoughts are presented for Members as a
contribution to preparing an option(s) for consideration by local government
across the South East:

The “sub-region” should be the primary building block for the purposes of
local government grouping in the South East region

Each sub-regional grouping should nominate to a “South East Local
Government Regional Executive” which would have the responsibility for
dealing with those matters reserved for region-wide determination

The principle of subsidiarity should be adopted such that all matters
should be dealt with at the sub-regional level except where statutory or
other requirements determine that these are “regional” matters

Each sub-regional local government grouping would have in membership
the county, district and unitary authorities within its area but would also
establish mechanisms for stakeholder engagement from all relevant
sectors and organisations including town/parish councils

The sub-region would be responsible for:

- advising SEEDA in respect of the development of the Integrated
Regional Strategy (IRS) regarding all sub-regional components
of the economic development and spatial strategy elements
including  future housing numbers and infrastructure
requirements;

- prioritising investment requirements for the sub-region relating to
infrastructure enhancement necessary to deliver the IRS.

The SE Local Government Regional Executive would be responsible for:

- scrutinising the impact of SEEDA in delivering the Single
Regional Strategy and its functions as the Regional Development
Agency;

- acting as the local government mechanism for negotiation with
SEEDA in the development of the IRS and for its sign-off prior to
submission to Ministers;

- acting as the collective voice of the region in making
representation to Ministers regarding the IRS, the work of
SEEDA and other region-wide concerns

- undertaking all “region-wide” activities which are (statutorily)
determined to be the responsibility of local government operating
regionally.

If this model of empowered sub-regions federated for regional working is to be
advanced two factors will need to be determined in due course:

1.
2.

Definition of Sub-Regions
Template for sub-regional places on the Regional Grouping.

3o0f4

Page 25



The region will need to be divided into geographical units that collectively
make-up the entirety of the South East region. Each council should be a full
member of one sub-regional grouping but they should also be able to be an
associate member of other groupings in which they have a legitimate interest.
In this way cross-border issues can be addressed and allows authorities to
belong to more than one grouping. This arrangement would match current
arrangements, eg Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council belongs to the
Hampshire and Isle of Wight LGA but is also an Associate Member of
ACTVaR.

Each sub-region would nominate to the Regional Executive with the number
of places for each sub-region determined by reference to a population-based
template as a proportion of the total regional population. Sub-regional
representatives on the regional body would be required to report back to their
‘home” sub-region.

4 0f 4

Page 26



Agenda ltem 14

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL Report No 138/07

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Wards Affected: All

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER)
TO THE EXECUTIVE
1 FEBRUARY 2008

Business Rates — Discretionary Rate Relief Criteria Review

Introduction & Report Summary

The purpose of this report is to agree a new simplified process for awarding National
Non-Domestic Rate discretionary relief (business rates relief) that supports delivery of
the Council’s Corporate Plan and Community Strategy. The report will aim to establish
a clear, transparent policy with an unambiguous link to the aims, objectives and
priorities of the Council.

This report is a review of the criteria for granting discretionary rate relief from rates on
any non-domestic property only and makes no proposals in relation to mandatory rate
relief as the Council has no discretion in such matters; where it acts as the agent of
central government.

The contact officer for this report is Paul Howden, Revenues & Benefits Client Manager
(Tel: 01235 540385; email paul.howden@southoxon.gov.uk).

Recommendations

Members are requested to approve:

The categories of organisation eligible for National Non-Domestic Rates discretionary
rate relief from 1 April 2008 as set out in Appendix A of the report.

The level of award to different types of organisation from 1 April 2008 as set out in
Appendix B of the this report, subject to any over-riding considerations that mitigate
against making an award to a particular organisation.

A cap of £8,000 on the amount of discretionary rate relief and £4,000 on the amount of
discretionary top-up rate relief that any organisation can receive in respect of a
particular premises in any one financial year, unless it is in the financial interests of the
Council to facilitate a larger amount being awarded. The cap limits are to be reviewed
each financial year and will rise in line with inflation and the non-domestic rates
multiplier.

The decision to award discretionary relief to be delegated to the Chief Finance Officer
based on the categories agreed by the Executive.

A review of the eligibility of the organisations that are currently being granted rate relief.

Page 27



2.6

3.0

3.1

4.0

41

4.2

The criteria for discretionary relief will to be reviewed at least every three years in line
with the changing priorities of the Council commencing from year 2010 — 2011.

Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies

This report supports the Council’s Vision and Priorities. It also supports the Vale
Community Strategy. It does not conflict with any Council strategy or any Council

policy.
Background

The Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended, sets out the general categories
of organisations and properties that are eligible for relief. Certain types of organisations
such as Charities, some sports clubs and certain rural businesses are entitled to
mandatory relief from rates on any non-domestic property, providing certain criteria is
met. Local councils have discretion to grant further top-up relief on the remaining bill.
Councils also have discretion to grant relief on all or part of any rate bill for property that
is occupied by certain non-profit making bodies and business in rural areas.

Table 1 below summarises the eligibility for relief, the type and amount of relief which is
available and the financial implications. When the Council grants discretionary relief
only a proportion of the relief is borne by the Council. A proportion of the cost is also
borne by the national non-domestic rates pool which all rates collected nationally are
paid into. Therefore, discretionary rate relief can be a cost effective means of providing
support to charities, certain types of sports clubs and certain rural businesses.

Table 1
Property Type of Amount of Proportion Proportion
Occupied by Relief Relief offset against | borne locally
NNDR Pool by taxpayers

e Registered Mandatory -
¢ Community

Amateur

Sports Club . . o o o
« Charities Discretionary Up to 20% 25% 75%

exempt from

Registration
Not established or
conducted for : .
profit e.g.. village Discretionary Up to 100% 75% 25%
hall
Rural Rate Relief - Mandatory o o
Pub, Post Office 80% 100%
etc Discretionary Up to 20% 75% 25%
General Rural : . o o o
Business Discretionary Up to 100% 75% 25%
Hardship Relief Discretionary Up to 100% 75% 25%

Page 28



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The Council's existing criteria, used to determine whether or not an eligible ratepayer is
granted discretionary relief and the different levels of relief that would be awarded was
established by the Council’s Executive on 21 October 2005.

In accordance with the 21 October 2005 report, discretionary relief was to be awarded
to organisations as detailed in Appendix B column headed “21 October 2005 Report”.

The existing criteria for awarding discretionary rate relief do not fully take account of the
Council’s objectives as set out in its Corporate Plan and Community Strategy. The new
model ensures that the aims and objectives in these documents drive the choice of
types of organisation to which the Council will offer discretionary rate relief.

From reviewing the national non-domestic rates’ database it would appear that the
Executive's decision has not yet been fully implemented and this has therefore led to
inconsistency. Furthermore, the 21 October 2005 report did not consider the awarding
of discretionary rate relief in relation to businesses in rural areas and as a result there is
no consistency or clear policy.

Changes to Existing Criteria

The main proposed changes to the 2005 Executive decision are:

With regard to sports clubs, there would no longer be a differentiation between clubs
that have licensed bars and those that do not. Instead, the aim would be to encourage
sports clubs to register with HM Revenue and Customs as Community Amateur Sports
Clubs (CASC’s)

Since 1 April 2004, sports clubs that have registered with HM Revenue & Customs as
CASC'’s are entitled to 80% mandatory rate relief. Councils can also “top-up” the relief
at their discretion, effectively granting CASC’s the same rights to rate relief as
registered charities.

There are currently 22 sports clubs in the Vale that have been identified as having
already registered as CASC’s and as a result they are receiving mandatory rate relief
rather than discretionary rate relief. This is at no cost to the Council as Mandatory
relief is borne by the NNDR pool (Government) as shown in Table 1 above.

There is no legal obligation for sports clubs to register as CASC’s and some of the clubs
currently receiving discretionary rate relief may not be eligible to register E.g. where a
club is semi — professional or where it limits access to participation due to excessive
joining fees or required standards. However, some clubs may have not yet applied for
registration and as a result continue to receive discretionary rate relief at a cost to the
Council. The criteria for discretionary rate relief should be changed to make it clear that
any club that has not applied for registration will normally have its discretionary rate
relief reduced.

As an incentive to register, clubs that do not apply for CASC status would initially
receive 50% discretionary rate relief which would then be reduced to 30% over a three
year period. However at the same time the Council can encourage Clubs to apply for
CASC status and provide the necessary assistance. [f a sports club can prove they are

Page 29



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

not eligible for CASC status they would continue to receive 50% discretionary relief.
The potential savings if the remaining 31 sports clubs that have been identified were to
register as CASC’s in year one would be approximately £6,155.

A further incentive to encourage CASC registration would be the offer of 5%
discretionary top-up rate relief in addition to the 80% mandatory relief. The cost of
awarding the 22 clubs currently registered as CASC’s with 5 % discretionary rate relief
would be approximately £2,455.

The implementation of the above would ensure that the Council would not penalise
clubs who have a bar and use any profits from it to further develop the club and its
facilities. Sports clubs will receive more relief through CASC registration and if any club
is primarily a social club with a bar then they will not be eligible for CASC status and will
therefore normally receive less relief.

Businesses that occupy premises with a rateable value of less than £15,000 are entitled
to Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR) (subject to certain conditions) which is awarded
at no cost to the Council. At present there are around 17 clubs with rateable values
under £15,000 that may be eligible for SBRR. It is therefore proposed that potentially
eligible clubs be encouraged to complete an application for SBRR (as well as any other
ratepayers in receipt of discretionary relief). As a further incentive it is proposed that
potentially eligible clubs are advised that failure to apply for SBRR will result in any
award of discretionary rate relief being based on what their rate liability would be if
SBRR had been applied. This will again reduce the cost to the Council. In addition to
this, organisations which currently receive rate relief may not feel inclined to appeal
against their rateable value. Officers will therefore encourage these organisations to
appeal, as any reduction in the rate liability will also reduce the Council’s rate relief
burden.

The non-domestic rating legislation makes provision for 50% mandatory rural rate relief
for certain general stores, post offices, general food stores, petrol filling stations and
public houses. Councils can also top-up the relief to 100% at their discretion.
Furthermore, provision is made for the awarding of discretionary rural rate relief in
respect of premises in rural areas that are used for purposes beneficial to the local
community.

As mentioned in 4.5 above, the 21 October 2005 report did not consider rural rate relief
and there is currently inconsistency in its application across the district. During a review
of the national non-domestic rates database a possible 21 accounts were identified that
had not applied for, but may be eligible for mandatory rural rate relief. Furthermore,
whilst some rural post offices and general stores appear to have been awarded 50%
discretionary rural top-up relief, others have not, without any clear reasoning behind the
decision. It is therefore proposed that discretionary rural rate relief is awarded to all
eligible rural post offices and general stores at 50% across the district. This would cost
£6,700.

With regard to village halls, where the hall is run by a registered charity it is proposed
that they will receive 20% discretionary top-up rate relief in addition to the 80%
mandatory rate relief that they receive. The majority of village halls in the district
(currently 53 out of 60) identified have already obtained charitable status and are

Page 30



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

therefore receiving 100% relief (80% mandatory relief and 20% top-up). Where village
halls are not run by a registered charity it is proposed that they will receive 90%
discretionary rate relief which will be reduced to 70% over a three year period. The
purpose of this is to encourage such organisations to obtain charitable status on the
basis that they should be run for the benefit of the community and have open access,
etc.

Organisations applying for discretionary rate relief will need to satisfy the Council that
they support its aims and objectives and that they do not discriminate against any
sectors of the community.

It is recommended that a cap is placed on the amount of discretionary rate relief that
any organisation can receive in respect of an individual premises (unless it is in the
overriding interests of the council taxpayers to award more). At present, there is no cap
and the Council is potentially vulnerable if an organisation enlarges its premises and
attracts a higher level of non-domestic rates as a result. Officers propose that the cap
be set at £8,000 for discretionary rate relief (at a cost of £2,000 to the Council) and
£4,000 for top-up relief to charities or CASC’s (at a cost of £3,000 to the Council) The
figures of £8,000 and £4,000 are not ones that have any scientific or empirical evidence
to support them, but seem to be a reasonable amount and exceed the level of
discretionary rate relief currently being paid out in respect of all premises under the
current arrangements. There are no current cases where the level of relief exceeds
£8,000 for discretionary rate relief and £4,000 for top-up relief. The limits should be
reviewed on an annual basis and raised in line with inflation and the non-domestic rates
multiplier.

In relation to the caps detailed above, it is proposed that a degree of flexibility is
included where the financial interests of the Council could be helped. SOLL is the
social enterprise which has a contract to manage several of the Council’s leisure
facilities. By awarding 20 % top-up relief to SOLL (which would amount to around
£40,693 in relief) and negotiating a reduction in the contract fee by the amount, it would
be possible to save the Council in the region of £10,173 per year (the cost to the
Council in awarding the relief being approximately £30,520). SOLL has already agreed
to this change in principle. The same option unfortunately cannot be applied to CLS (the
social enterprise which manages the White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre) because
they do not receive a management fee.

It is proposed that the decision to award discretionary rate relief based on the
categories agreed by the Executive be delegated to the Chief Finance Officer. This will
ensure that there is no delay in informing applicants of the outcome of their application.
Furthermore, the current process for awarding discretionary rate relief means that
before a decision is made the applicant is required to submit detailed information, and
then each application is assessed individually. This is time consuming for both officers
and the organisations seeking discretionary relief and does not accord with the practice
of the other district councils in Oxfordshire, all of which make category based awards.

The targeting of discretionary rate relief in line with the Council’s objectives helps in
promoting a strong and sustainable local economy and helps to provide access to a
number of services and facilities. Other benefits include, encouraging participation and

Page 31



5.17

5.18

5.19

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

local action and the protection and improvement of the local natural and rural
environment.

The introduction of a new process based on categories of organisation that are eligible
for discretionary rate relief, rather than officer assessment of individual applications,
should ensure that the Council treats all organisations equally and fairly.

All of the potentially eligible categories of organisation have been compared against the
Council’s Community Strategy and Corporate Plan to determine which might be the
priorities. Appendix A contains the results of that exercise and shows a number of
categories where there is a clear direct link to one or more Community Strategy and/or
Corporate Plan priorities. It also shows a group of categories that do not link in any way
clearly to the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan as mentioned above.

By awarding discretionary rate relief the Council is providing significant financial support
to the Vale’s voluntary and community sector and some small but important rural
businesses. It is important that residents of the Vale are aware of the support that is
provided. Therefore, as well as the statutory information that is provided to ratepayers
with their bills, the Council will produce publicity from time to time to ensure that the
community is aware of how the Vale helps these sectors and, what help is available.

Implementing the Changes in Criteria

If the recommendations in this report are approved, officers will write to all organisations
currently receiving discretionary rate relief, and those who are not currently receiving
relief but will under the new arrangements, to inform them of the amount of relief they
will receive in 2008-2009. Officers will also make a concerted effort to encourage the
take up of CASC registration and entitlement to Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR).

When considering applications officers will carry out a basic assessment of each
individual application to ensure that in offering discretionary rate relief the Council’s
corporate aims are being pursued. This will, however, be a scaled down version of
what currently happens, as there will be a much clearer position regarding those
organisations that are considered to be priority and those that are not.

Financial Implications

The full cost of mandatory rate relief awarded is borne by the national non-domestic rate
pool. Table 1, mentioned under 4.2 above, shows the implications of awarding
discretionary rate relief, the cost of which is shared between the Council and the
national non-domestic rate pool.

The current budget for discretionary rate relief is £58,870. There are currently 151
organisations receiving discretionary rate relief with the average cost to the Council
being £329 per award.

There are a number of uncertainties attached to the new arrangements that make it
difficult to predict exact overall costs. Chief amongst these is the number of
organisations that will successfully apply for charitable or CASC status. Suffice to say,
the more that officers are able to encourage take up, the better it will be for the Council.

Page 32



7.4

8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

9.1

Officers have estimated that in 2008/2009 costs will not exceed the current 2007/2008
budget of £58,870 based on the proposals in this report. The annual cost should also
reduce in the following two financial years when the incentives kick in. However, if relief
was awarded to SOLL as explained in 5.15 above there would be an overall saving to
the Council of £10,173. This makes good business sense.

There is always a risk that new eligible organisations may move into the district, or that
existing eligible organisations may expand and increase their rate liability. However,
these risks are of very low probability and, the caps on awards will protect the Council.
In addition, this new mechanism of awarding relief will allow the Council to review the
awards it makes on an annual basis taking into account budgetary constraints.

Leqgal Implications

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 gives councils the discretion to
decide on the amount of relief they give and the rules they use to determine that
amount. This report proposes the adoption of guidelines which the Council will take into
account when exercising that discretion. The guidelines reflect how the Council would
normally approach a particular case. It would not be lawful to adopt strict rules. The
proposals comply with the law and reflect government guidance, allowing each case to
be treated on its merits.

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires that recipients of discretionary rates
relief are given notice of a full financial year of the intention to change the relief granted.
As the Council notified recipients during 2005/06 that their awards for 2006/07 maybe
varied from 1 April 2008, it has met this statutory requirement. Ongoing, the Council will
continue to make annual awards and notify recipients accordingly.

Conclusion

The proposals set out in this report will provide a simple, transparent process that aligns
awards of discretionary rate relief with the Council’s Community Strategy and Corporate
Plan. They provide incentives for some organisations to achieve CASC or charity
status, thereby shifting the majority of the burden of relief from the local council
taxpayers to the national exchequer. They propose standardising the discretionary rate
relief for sports organisations that are unable to achieve CASC status at 50% and non-
charitable village hall organisations at 70%. Furthermore, they introduce a policy for
discretionary rural rate relief to achieve consistency and introduces financial flexibility
for the Council.  This review will help to ensure that a limited budget is effective in
supporting the Council's vision, aims and priorities.

PAUL HOWDEN
REVENUE & BENEFITS CLIENT MANAGER

STEVE BISHOP
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER)

Background Papers: None

Page 33



Appendix A

Type of Organisation

Corporate Plan

Community Strategy

Description

Categories supported due to a specific link to the Corporate Plan and Community Strategy

Sports Clubs/Recreational
Organisations

CS9

Maximise opportunities for older people to exercise

Increase use of local facilities

Youth Organisations

CP04

Help disadvantaged groups and individuals within
the Vale to realize their full potential

Village/Community Halls/
Community Centres

CS5

Foster a spirit of community by developing
infrastructure and breaking down barriers between
different groups

Encourage local issues groups

CS9

Increase support for older people to avoid isolation

Maximise opportunities for older people to exercise

Greater Support for young parents

Rural Post Offices/General
Stores

CS5

Support for economic vitality across all sectors
including small rural businesses

CP03

Encourage a strong and sustainable economy
which benefits all who live in, work in or visit the
Vale

Pre-Schools

CS8

Support parents and guardians

CS9

Greater support for young parents

Community Care
Organisations

CS5

Foster a spirit of community by developing
infrastructure and breaking down barriers between
different groups

CS9

Increase support for older people to avoid isolation

CP04

Help disadvantage groups and individuals within
the Vale to realise their full potential

Advice Organisations

CS9

Increase support for older people to avoid isolation

Greater Support for young parents

Promote and support volunteering

Art Charities — Performance,
Teaching & Museums

CS3

Expanded range of facilities/affordable venues

CS5

Support for economic vitality across all sectors
including small rural businesses

CP03

Encourage a strong and sustainable economy
which benefits all who live in, work in or visit the
Vale

Categories with no direct link and, therefore, not supported

Charity Shops NONE NONE
Church Aided Schools NONE NONE
Public Schools NONE NONE
Registered Social Landlords NONE NONE
(administrative premises)

Organisations not Supporting NONE NONE
the Aims and Objectives i.e.

Religious Organisations

Schools/Educational NONE NONE
National Charities NONE NONE
Art Charities not Performance NONE NONE
and Teaching related

Rural Public Houses & Petrol NONE NONE
Filling Stations

General Rural Businesses NONE NONE
Conservation/Environmental NONE NONE

Charities

Page 34




Appendix B

Guidelines for Discretionary Rate Relief Award Levels

Relief Category 21 October 2005 Proposed Relief Levels
Report
Sports Clubs Non CASC Discretionary With Bar 25% |Discretionary Year 1 50%
Discretionary No Bar 50% |Discretionary Year 2 40%
Discretionary Year 3 30%
Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC) Mandatory Only 80% | Mandatory 80%
Discretionary 5%
Rural Relief *Not Included Mandatory 50%
Mandatory 50% |and
Rural Shop Post Office -Discretionary 50%
Rural Food Shop Rural Shop -Discretionary 50%
Rural Public House Rural Food Shop - Discretionary 0%
Rural Petrol Filling Station Pub -Discretionary 0%
Other Rural Businesses Petrol Filling Station -Discretionary 0%
Schools Mandatory Only 80% | Mandatory Only 80%
Charity Shops Mandatory Only 80% | Mandatory Only 80%
National Charities Mandatory Only 80% | Mandatory Only 80%
Housing Associations Mandatory Only 80% | Mandatory Only 80%
Playgroups Mandatory 80% |Mandatory 80%
Top-up 20% |Top-up 20%
or or
Discretionary 100% |Discretionary 100%
Village/ Community Halls/ Mandatory 80% |[Mandatory 80%
Community Centres Top-up 20% |Top-up 20%
or or
Discretionary 100% |Discretionary Year 1 90%
Discretionary Year 2 80%
Discretionary Year 3 70%
Citizens Advice Bureaux Mandatory 80% |Mandatory 80%
Top-up 20% | Top-up 20%
or or
Discretionary 100% |Discretionary 100%
Scouts & Guides, Youth Clubs Mandatory 80% |Mandatory 80%
Renamed Youth Top-up 20% | Top-up 20%
or or
Discretionary 100% |Discretionary 100%
Serving/Benefiting the Local Community Mandatory 80% |Mandatory 80%
Renamed Community Care Top-up 20% |Top-up 20%
or or
Discretionary 100% |Discretionary 100%
Art Centres & Musical Organisations Mandatory 80% |Arts - Performance. Teaching Museums
Renamed and split into three Top-up 20% | Mandatory 80%
or Top-up 20%
Arts - Performance, Teaching Museums Discretionary 100% | or
Arts - General i.e. not performance or Discretionary 100%
teaching
Arts - General
Mandatory Only 80%
New Category * Not Included Mandatory Only 80%
Charities Not Supporting Aims
i.e. Religious Organisations
New Category *Not Included Mandatory Only 80%
Environmental Charities

* These categories were not included in the scope of the 21 October 2005 report
*#* Discretionary awards are made subject to funding available.

Page 35 Page 9 of 9



Agenda ltem 15

ARG

M wanitase
| Svare &

T o

Boronia

. Cotswold

House

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the
Controfler of Her Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown copyright, Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may tead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

Issued by the Vale of White Horse District Council - Licence No. 100019525
Tugwell Fieid

No further copies may be made.

14th September 2007 1250




	Agenda
	Map and Vision
	9 Financial Monitoring
	10 Forward Plan
	12 Treasury Management and Investment Strategy
	13 Review of Sub-National Economic Development and Regeneration - Consultation by ACTVaR
	14 Review of National Non-Domestic Rates Discretionary Relief
	15 Tugwell Fields, Wantage

